
Regular Council Meeting Agenda February 14, 2023 Page 1 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
Bentley Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday February 14, 2023 
6:45pm Regular Meeting 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Indigenous Acknowledgement 
 
“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and Home of Metis 
Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement involving mutuality 
and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First 
Nations whose footsteps have marked these lands.” 

 
3. Amendments & Acceptance of Agenda 

 
4. Adoption of Previous Minutes:  

 
a) Regular Meeting of Council January 24, 2023 
b) Council Remuneration Listing January 2023 
 

5. Financial: 
 

a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20230034 to 20230096 
 

6. New Business 
 

a) 2022 Grain Elevator Recommendation for Recovery of Costs 
• Delegation Patrick Morrison – Healthy Herds 

 
b) Bylaw 238/2023 – Bylaw to establish the position of assessor and declare 

the position as a designated officer for the Town of Bentley 
 

c) Bylaw 239/2023 – Bylaw to amend bylaw 211/2019 to include terms of 
repayment as per MAP audit findings 
 

7. Correspondence 
 

a) Council Highlights Lacombe County January 26, 2023 
 

b) February 22, 2023, 7:30pm to 9:30pm – (Bentley Community Hall) Public 
Engagement & Survey - Medicine Lodge Ski Hill Masterplan and Asset 
Utilization Study 
 

8. Other Business 
 

9. Adjournment       



 

Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 24, 2023 

 

 

Minutes of the Regular of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

 January 24, 2023 

Date and Place  Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Town of Bentley 
held Tuesday, January 24, 2023, at 6:45 p.m., in the Bentley Municipal 
Office 
 
 

In Attendance Mayor Greg Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Valiquette  

   Councillor Hansen 
   Councillor Dale Grimsdale 
   Councillor Eastman 
   CAO, Marc Fortais 
 
 
Call to Order Mayor Rathjen called the regular meeting to order at 6:45pm,  

 

Indigenous  
Acknowledgement “We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 

Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement 
involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, 
Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose footsteps have marked these 
lands” 

Read by Mayor Rathjen 
 
 

Agenda 

Motion 22/2023 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT the agenda of 

the January 24, 2023, Regular Meeting of Council be amended to include 

the following as other business: 

b) Outdoor Rinks – to discuss a request received by residents regarding     

     the outdoor rinks 

 

c) In-camera – item regarding public communication on behalf of 

council in accordance with the freedom of information and privacy act, 

Division 2 – Exceptions to Disclosure, Advice from officials 24(1) The 

head of a public body may refuse to disclose information to an applicant if 

the disclosure could reasonably be expected to reveal (b) consultations or 

deliberations involving (ii) a member of the Executive Council.” 

 



 

Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 24, 2023 

 

         Carried 

Motion 23/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the agenda of 

the January 24, 2023, Regular Meeting of Council be amended to include 

the following as other business: 

d) In-camera – item regarding confidential CAO evaluations in 

accordance with the freedom of information and privacy act, Division 2 – 

Exceptions to Disclosure, Disclosure Harmful to personal privacy 17(1) The 

head of a public body must refuse to disclose personal information to an 

applicant if the disclosure would be an unreasonable invasion of a third 

party’s personal privacy. (2e) the information is about the third party’s 

classification, salary range, discretionary benefits or employment 

responsibilities as an officer, employee, or member of a public body or as a 

member of the staff of a member of the Executive Council.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 24/2023 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT the amended 

agenda of the January 24, 2023 Regular Meeting of Council be accepted.” 

           Carried 

 

Previous Minutes   

Motion 25/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the minutes of 

the January 10, 2023, Regular Meeting of Council be accepted.” 

 

        Carried 

 

 

Motion 26/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Valiquette, “THAT the 

minutes of the January 13, 2023 Special Meeting of Council, including the 

waiver of notice signed by council and the letter to Canada Post be 

accepted.” 

        Carried 

 

 

Financial  

a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20230001 to 20230033 

Motion 27/2023 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT Cheques No. 

20230001 to 20230033 be received for information.” 

           Carried 

 

 

 

 



 

Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 24, 2023 

 

 

New Business  

 

a) Annual Recreation, Cultural, Historical and Tourism Funding 

Support 2023 

Motion 28/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Valiquette, “THAT funding in 

the amount of $3,503 be provided to the Bentley Museum Society as a grant 

to support the hiring of an additional summer student at the tourism 

information centre.” (It should be noted that Councillor Grimsdale did not 

vote on the motion due to a potential conflict of interest as he is a 

municipal representative attending board meetings for the Bentley 

Museum, and left the room for the discussion) 

        Carried 

Motion 29/2023 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT funding in the 

amount of $1,500 be provided to the Bentley Municipal Library as a grant to 

support the 2023 Mini Libraries program. “(It should be noted that 

Councillor Hansen did not vote on the motion due to a potential 

conflict of interest, as she is a municipal representative to the board of 

the Bentley Municipal Library, and left the room for the discussion) 

        Carried 

 

Motion 30/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the grant 

application from the Bentley Farmers Market for $5,000 for the proposed 

Double Up Bucks program is not approved for funding at this time.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 31/2023 Moved by Mayor Rathjen, “THAT Deputy Mayor 

Valiquette assume the role as chair of the meeting at 7:19pm for 

consideration of the grant application from the Bentley community Van 

Society, due to a potential conflict of interest.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 32/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT funding in the 

amount of $2,000 be provided to the Bentley Community Van Society as a 

grant to assist with 2023 operational costs.” (It should be noted that Mayor 

Rathjen did not vote on the motion due to a potential conflict of 

interest, as Mayor Rathjen serves on the board of the Bentley 

Community Van Society and left the room for the discussion) 

        Carried 

 



 

Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 24, 2023 

 

Motion 33/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Valiquette, “THAT Mayor 

Rathjen re-assume the role as chair of the meeting at 7:21pm.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 34/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Valiquette, “THAT funding in 

the amount of $1,850 be provided to Bentley Minor Ball as a grant to assist 

with the purchase of a portable pitching mound.” 

           Carried 

Motion 35/2023 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT funding in the 

amount of $2,000 be provided to the Bentley Rodeo Committee as a grant to 

assist with the purchase of the high point saddle to be awarded as a trophy 

saddle at the Bentley Rodeo to the high point cowboy or cowgirl.” 

        Carried 

Motion 36/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Valiquette, “THAT funding in 

the amount of $2,500 be provided to the Bentley Show N Shine Kurzin West 

as a grant to assist with the drive-in movie night for the Bentley Car Show.” 

        Carried 

Motion 37/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT funding in the 

amount of $6,500 be provided to the Bentley Curling Club as a grant to 

replace one of the on-ice gas heaters at the curling rink.” 

        Carried 

Motion 38/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the grant 

application from the Medicine Lodge Ski Club for $5,000 for miscellaneous 

care and maintenance, not be approved for funding, due to not meeting the 

requirements of policy 52/2015 because of not providing the necessary 

reporting that all funds granted in the prior year were spent; AND 

THAT the Medicine Lodge Ski Club is authorized to carry forward any 

unspent grant funds awarded in the 2022 year to the 2023 year; AND 

THAT the required reporting once the funds are spent be submitted to the 

Town of Bentley in 2023.” 

        Carried 

Motion 39/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the grant 

application from Bentley Minor Hockey for $8,000 to assist with renovations 

not completed in 2022, not be approved for funding, due to not meeting the 

requirements of policy 52/2015 because of not providing he necessary 

reporting that all the funds granted in the prior year were spent; AND 

THAT Bentley Minor Hockey is authorized to carry forward any unspent 

grant funds awarded in the 2022 year to the 2023 year; AND 

THAT the required reporting once the funds are spent be submitted to the 

Town of Bentley in 2023.” 



 

Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 24, 2023 

 

        Carried 

 

 

 

Correspondence 

a) Council Highlights Lacombe County January 12, 2023 

b) Canada Post Update January 14, 2023 

 

Motion 40/2023 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT 

correspondence items a) and b) be accepted as information.” 

       Carried 

 

Other Business 

a) Deputy Mayor Changing from Councillor Valiquette to Councillor 

Grimsdale on January 25, 2023. Councillor Grimsdale will serve as 

Deputy Mayor from January 25, 2023, to April 25, 2023, in accordance 

with the organizational meeting which took place on October 25, 2022. 

 

Motion 41/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Councillor 

Grimsdale be appointed Deputy Mayor from January 25, 2023 to April 25, 

2023 and that Deputy Mayor Grimsdale shall have signing authority for all 

Town of Bentley accounts including the accounts at Servus Credit Union 

during this time.” 

       Carried 

b) Outdoor Rink 

Councillor Grimsdale asked council to consider adding hockey nets to the 

outdoor rinks to be purchased by the Town of Bentley. Council discussed 

the matter including the risk of theft, vandalism etc and did not feel the cost 

was warranted. Council felt that if someone wanted to play hockey at the 

rinks, they should be supplying their own nets. No motion was made. 

 

Break Motion 42/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Mayor and 

Council take a 10 minute break at 7:50pm.” 

        Carried 

 

 Motion 43/2023 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT the regular 

meeting of council is back in session at 7:58pm 



 

Regular Council Meeting Minutes January 24, 2023 

 

        Carried 

In-Camera  

Motion 44/2023 Moved by Councillor Eastman, THAT the Regular 

Meeting of Mayor and Council be closed to the public at 7:58pm to discuss 

two items as other business in-camera as follows: 

 

c) public communication on behalf of council in accordance with the 

freedom of information and privacy act, Division 2 – Exceptions to 

Disclosure, Advice from officials 24(1) The head of a public body may 

refuse to disclose information to an applicant if the disclosure could 

reasonably be expected to reveal (b) consultations or deliberations 

involving (ii) a member of the Executive Council.” 

          

d) confidential CAO evaluations in accordance with the freedom of 

information and privacy act, Division 2 – Exceptions to Disclosure, 

Disclosure Harmful to personal privacy 17(1) The head of a public body 

must refuse to disclose personal information to an applicant if the 

disclosure would be an unreasonable invasion of a third party’s personal 

privacy. (2e) the information is about the third party’s classification, 

salary range, discretionary benefits or employment responsibilities as an 

officer, employee, or member of a public body or as a member of the 

staff of a member of the Executive Council.” 

 

Carried 

 

    

 Motion 45/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the regular 

meeting of Mayor and Council be resumed in public at 9:45pm 

   

         Carried 

 

Adjournment  

 Mayor Rathjen adjourned the meeting, at 9:46pm 

 

         

 

 

 

 

_________________________    _________________________ 

Mayor Greg Rathjen      CAO Marc Fortais 











February 14, 2023 – New Business – 2022 Grain Elevator Fire and Recovery of Costs 

 
 
Agenda Date: February 14, 2023 
      
Agenda Item: New Business: 2022 Grain Elevator Fire and Recovery of Costs  

 
 
 
 
LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENT/AUTHORITY 
 
The Municipal Government Act (MGA), RSA 2000, Chapter M-26 of the Revised Statutes of Alberta, 
as amended, Division 1 provides the Council of a Municipality may pass By-laws for the safety, health 
and welfare of people and the protection of people and property. Further, section 553(1)(g) and 553(2) 
of the MGA also allows for the transfer or any unpaid costs of fire extinguishment to be added to the 
tax roll if the municipality has passed a bylaw making the owner of a parcel liable for expenses and 
costs related to the municipality extinguishing fires on a parcel. 
 
Further Bylaw 128/2008 a bylaw of the Town of Bentley in the Province of Alberta to provide for the 
establishment and operation of a volunteer fire department (Attachment #1) and to provide for the 
protection and preservation of life and property within the Town of Bentley, was passed on August 
12th, 2008. 
 
October 14, 2014, Policy 50-2014 Bentley District Fire Department Fire Protection and Emergency 
Response, Part C – Charges for Fire and Emergency Response Equipment and Personnel 
(Attachment #2) was approved. The policy also provides guidance for rates and costs that can be 
recovered in relation to fire and emergency response equipment and personnel. 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
On December 23, 2022, at approximately 1:30am, it was reported that the iconic Bentley Grain 
Elevator was on fire. The Bentley Fire Department and Lacombe Fire Department responded 
immediately. The fire engulfed the grain elevator quickly and firefighting efforts focused on 
containment, to ensure no additional spread to the community and other buildings. The cause of the 
fire remains unknown due to the significant heat generated by the blaze. 
 
The property owner has worked hard to ensure that the site was cleaned up in a timely manner, while 
working with their insurance to address the issue. The Town of Bentley would like to thank the 
property owner for undertaking the cleanup efforts diligently and as quickly as possible. 
 
The loss of the elevator is significant to the community and to the property owner. Typically, in a 
situation where property loss occurs, the property owner’s insurance will cover not only the loss of 
structures, equipment etc., but also costs associated to that loss and any required efforts to undertake 
firefighting and clean up.  
 



February 14, 2023 – New Business – 2022 Grain Elevator Fire and Recovery of Costs 

Policy 50/2014 – Bentley District Fire Department Fire Protection and Emergency Response was 
adopted and approved on October 14, 2014. The policy provides for the following rates of charge for 
fire and emergency response equipment and personnel responding to a fire: 
 

I. Town or County Engine       $500.00 per hour 
 

II. Rescue Truck        $500.00 per hour 
 

III. Equipment and supplies other than the Engine or Rescue Truck Town of Bentley 
Costs + 15% Administrative Fee 
 

IV. Personnel other than Fire Department Members   Town of Bentley Costs + 
15% Administrative Fee 

 
Man Hours - $15.00 per hour for all hours exceeding a total of 10-man hours at the same response 
within the Town Limits and mutual aid to other municipalities.  
 
It should be noted that the policy should be updated to reflect new rates and charges associated with 
the Fire Departments response and the current verbal arrangement with the County (while the policy 
is being amended), however for this report and for the associated recommendation to recover costs, 
the above rates have been used as per the established policy.  
 
Administration has confirmed with several neighboring communities that it is typical in these situations 
that they would seek reimbursement of cost for fire response from a private landowner for fires that 
occur on their private property. As mentioned earlier typically reimbursement for these costs would 
come through the insurance of a private landowner. However, it is also our understanding, that 
typically in the case of grain elevators, the insurance cost to insure grain for fire response and cleanup 
is significantly high, and in many cases, they are not insured for those costs. Costs are usually high 
due to the risk of combustion from the grain itself, which can heat up internally and combust.  
 
The property owner has been cooperative with the Town and has worked collaboratively to address 
the ongoing issues. Administration is recommending a recovery of costs associated to the initial 
response only in December. It should be noted that there were some additional charges incurred  in 
January to do with smoke and follow up as well as support for the cleanup efforts. Administration is 
treating these additional costs in January as regular business as they relate to continued 911 calls by 
residents, concerned with smoke and to supply fire support for the cleanup effort, which was 
undertaken as quickly as possible. Administration is not recommending billing the property owner for 
these additional costs in January. 
 
FINANCIAL 
 
Recoverable Costs 
Hourly Honorarium Costs   639.77hrs @ $15.00 per hour  $  9,596.55 
City of Lacombe Tower Response       $  6,037.50 
DB Bobcat Equipment Support       $  7,020.75 
Engine and Rescue (s/b 18 hrs. ea.)  16hrs. @ $500 per hour  $  8,000.00 
 
 Total Recoverable Costs as per Policy 50/2014    $30,654.80 
 
 



February 14, 2023 – New Business – 2022 Grain Elevator Fire and Recovery of Costs 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Mayor and Council authorize CAO Marc Fortais to issue an invoice to the property owner of the 
property located at 4801 51st Street, Legal Description Lot 3, Block A, Plan 0321787 in the amount of 
$30,654.80. The invoice to be issued to recover costs of fire response throughout December 2022 
and in relation to the grain elevator fire which occurred on said property and for which the recoverable 
costs have been charged in accordance with Bylaw 128/2008 and Policy 50/2014 of the Town of 
Bentley; AND 
 
THAT the amount invoiced and payable by the property owner be payable within 60 days from the 
date of issue of the invoice; AND 
 
THAT if the invoice remains unpaid after 60 days, the amount be transferred to the associated 
property tax account in accordance with the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26 of 
the Revised Statutes of Alberta, Section 553(1)(g) 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Bylaw 128/2008 a bylaw of the Town of Bentley in the Province of Alberta to provide for the 
establishment and operation of a volunteer fire department. 
 

2) Policy 50/2014 Bentley District Fire Department Fire Protection and Emergency Response, 
Part C – Charges for Fire and Emergency Response Equipment and Personnel  

 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    



































February 14, 2023 – New Business  – MAP Audit – Bylaw 238-2023 Bylaw to designate Assessor as a Designated Officer 

 
 
Agenda Date:  February 14, 2023 
      
Agenda Item:  New Business: 

Municipal Accountability Program Audit 
 
Bylaw 238-2023 - Designated Officer Bylaw (Municipal Assessor)  

 
 
 
LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENT/AUTHORITY 
 
WHEREAS pursuant to section 210 of the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A 2000, Chapter M-26, as 
amended, requires that an Assessor be appointed as a Designated Officer; 
 
AND WHEREAS Section 284 of the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A 2000, M-26 as amended, 
requires that an Assessor be appointed as a Designated Officer; 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
On June 28, 2022, at the Regular Meeting of Council, the findings from the Municipal Accountability 
Program Audit were presented to Mayor and Council.  
 
Subsequently on August 29, 2022, the Town of Bentley submitted an action plan in response to the 
report that outlined a plan to address the legislative gaps that were identified in the report.  
 
The Town of Bentley Administration is on track to complete all actions to rectify the legislative gaps 
within the required timelines established. There are few remaining items including: 
 

• Police funding model is not a requisition and cannot be shown separately on the tax notice, we 
can however include a note to disclose the amount to residents (will be addressed with 2023 
Tax Notice) 

• The Tax notice needs to be amended to include a note that advises residents how to request a 
receipt for taxes paid. (will be addressed with 2023 Tax Notice) 

• We must send out an advertisement in the local paper after the assessment notices are mailed 
and after the tax notices are mailed to advise residents of the date these notices were mailed. 
(will be addressed with 2023 Tax Notice) 

• There is also an additional bylaw amendment required for establishment of a local and 
composite assessment review board (it is anticipated this will be complete by the end of 
March) 

• Appoint the Assessor as a Designated Officer (addressed with this report) 
• Amend Borrowing Bylaw 211-2019 to include repayment terms.  

 



February 14, 2023 – New Business  – MAP Audit – Bylaw 238-2023 Bylaw to designate Assessor as a Designated Officer 

This report has been prepared to provide you with an update on progress to rectify the legislative 
gaps identified through the MAP Audit and to address the bylaw change required to appoint the 
Assessor as a Designated Officer for the Town of Bentley.  
 
Bylaw 84-04 (Attachment #1) for the Town of Bentley was passed on February 24, 2004, establishing 
the position of assessor for the town, however the bylaw does not establish the position as a 
designated officer as required by section 284.2(1) of the MGA.  
 
Therefore, administration has prepared Bylaw 238-2023 (Attachment #2) It should be noted that 
passing this bylaw will also repeal and replace Bylaw 84-04 and will correct the issue that was 
identified through the MAP audit. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Mayor and Council give three readings to Bylaw No. 238-2023 being a bylaw to establish the 
assessor as a designated officer for the Town of Bentley and to repeal and replace Bylaw No. 84-04. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Bylaw 84-04 a bylaw to establish the position of Assessor. 
2) Bylaw 238-2023 a bylaw to establish the position of Assessor as a Designated Officer 

 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    





 
BYLAW 238/2023 

DESIGNATED OFFICER BYLAW 
 

A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF BENTLEY BEING ENACTED FOR THE PURPOSE TO 
APPOINT AN ASSESSOR AS A DESIGNATED OFFICER FOR THE TOWN OF 
BENTLEY AND ASSIGNING THE DUTIES OF THE POSITION 

 

WHEREAS pursuant to section 210 of the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A 2000, Chapter M-
26, as amended, requires that an Assessor be appointed as a Designated Officer; 

 
AND WHEREAS Section 284 of the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A 2000, M-26 as 
amended, requires that an Assessor be appointed as a Designated Officer; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Bentley duly assembled, hereby enacts as 
follows: 

 1. In this Bylaw: 

a) “Assessor” shall mean a person who has the qualifications set out in the 
Municipal Government Act Qualifications of Assessor Regulation – Alberta 
Regulation 233/2005 with amendments up to and including Alberta Regulation 
63/2012 and is appointed by the municipality by resolution of Council to the 
position of designated officer to carry out the duties and responsibilities of 
Assessor under the MGA (Alberta, R.S.A 2000, M-26, as amended) 

b) “Council” shall mean the Council of the Town of Bentley. 
c) “Designated Officer” shall mean the person designated pursuant to this Bylaw. 
d) “Contractor” shall mean an independent party to the Town of Bentley 

servicing under a contract to provide assessment services and shall not be 
deemed to be an employee of the Town of Bentley. 

2. That the position of Assessor for the Town of Bentley is hereby established. 

3. That the Assessor for the Town of Bentley: 

a) Is a Designated Officer and shall carry out the duties of Assessor as described 
in Parts 9,10, 11 and 12 of the MGA (Alberta), M-26 as amended.  

 
 4. Council, by resolution, will: 
  a) Appoint a person by resolution to the position of Assessor, 

b) This position will be held via an independent contract based on a term 
determined through  
    negotiations and formal contract award 
 



 5. Severance: 
a) If any provision herein is adjudged by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid for any reason, then that provision shall be severed from the remainder of 
this Bylaw and all other provisions of this Bylaw shall remain valid and 
enforceable. 

 
6. This Bylaw hereby repeals and replaces Bylaw 84-04 A Bylaw to establish the position 
    of Assessor for the Town of Bentley. 

 

  Read a First Time in Council this _____ day of _______________, 2023. 

 

  Read a Second Time in Council this _____ day of _______________, 2023. 

 

  Read a Third Time in Council this _____ day of _______________, 2023. 

 

 

TOWN OF BENTLEY 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
MAYOR 

 
 
 

____________________________________ 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 



February 14, 2023 – New Business – MAP Audit – Bylaw 239-2023 Bylaw to amend Bylaw 211-2019 to include repayment terms. 

 
 
Agenda Date:  February 14, 2023 
      
Agenda Item:  New Business: 

Municipal Accountability Program Audit 
 
Bylaw 239-2023 – Amendment to Bylaw 211-2019 to include repayment 
terms.  

 
 
 
LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENT/AUTHORITY 
 
Municipal Government Act (MGA), Revised Statutes of Alberta (2000), Chapter M-26, Sections 251-
259 provide guidance regarding borrowing for municipalities. It outlines the requirements to ensure 
that the borrowing has been authorized by bylaw and if that bylaw sets out: 

• The amount of money to be borrowed and, in general terms, the purpose for which the money 
is borrowed. 

• The maximum rate of interest, the term, and terms of repayment of the borrowing; and 
• The source or sources of money to be used to pay the principal and interest owing under the 

borrowing.  
• Was the borrowing bylaw advertised (if required) 

 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
On June 28, 2022, at the Regular Meeting of Council, the findings from the Municipal Accountability 
Program Audit were presented to Mayor and Council.  
 
Subsequently on August 29, 2022, the Town of Bentley submitted an action plan in response to the 
report that outlined a plan to address the legislative gaps that were identified in the report.  
 
The Town of Bentley Administration is on track to complete all actions to rectify the legislative gaps 
within the required timelines established. There are few remaining items including: 
 

• Police funding model is not a requisition and cannot be shown separately on the tax notice, we 
can however include a note to disclose the amount to residents (addressed with 2023 Tax 
Notice) 

• The Tax notice needs to be amended to include a note that advises residents how to request a 
receipt for taxes paid (addressed with 2023 Tax Notice) 

• We must send out an advertisement in the local paper after the assessment notices are mailed 
and after the tax notices are mailed to advise residents of the date these notices were mailed 
(addressed with 2023 Tax Notice) 

• There is also an additional bylaw amendment required for establishment of a local and 
composite assessment review board (it is anticipated this will be complete by the end of 
March) 



February 14, 2023 – New Business – MAP Audit – Bylaw 239-2023 Bylaw to amend Bylaw 211-2019 to include repayment terms. 

• Appoint the Assessor as a Designated Officer (addressed on February 14, 2022, Regular 
Meeting of Council) 

• Amend Borrowing Bylaw 211-2019 to include repayment terms.(addressed this report) 
 
This report has been prepared to provide you with an update on progress to rectify the legislative 
gaps identified through the MAP Audit and to address the bylaw amendment required to correct Bylaw 
211-2019 to include repayment terms.  
 
Bylaw 211-2019 (Attachment #1) was approved on the 28th day of May 2019 for the purpose of 
authorizing borrowing of $512,000 to complete servicing of lots contained within Town of Bentley 
Subdivision Plan 152-1374. 
 
Clause 3 of Bylaw 211-2019 states: “The Town of Bentley shall repay the indebtedness according to 
the repayment structure, terms, and interest rate, set from time to time, by the authorized financial 
institution, with an interest rate not to exceed 4 per cent. However, Bylaw 211-2019 does not contain 
provision respecting the term of borrowing or the terms of repayment of the borrowing as required by 
section 251 (2)(b) of the MGA. 
 
Therefore, administration has prepared Bylaw 239-2023 (Attachment #2) to remove clause 3 from 
Bylaw 211-2019 and replace it with the following: 
 
“3. Term and Terms of Repayment Loan Facility #9593831-07 with Servus Credit Union Ltd 
 Purpose: To assist with the cost of servicing lots in residential subdivision 

Interest Rate: An annual rate of interest of 3.49%, fixed calculated daily and payable monthly 
in arrears. 
Repayment Terms: Repayable with monthly blended installments of $9,320 commending one 
month after the Interest Adjustment Date (IAD) based on a fixed interest rate of 3.49% per 
annum, applied first to interest and secondly to principle; originally amortized over a 5-year 
period with a term expiring sixty (60) months after the Interest Adjustment Date. An interest 
adjustment on the principal amount advanced will be calculated from the date of initial advance 
and will be due and payable on the 1st day of the month following the initial advance (IAD). 
Prepayment Privileges: Minimum ($100.00) to a maximum of 20% of the original principle 
per year 
(Payments began October 1, 2019, and will continue until September 1, 2024) 

 
This amendment to Bylaw 211-2019 will resolve the outstanding issue identified through the MAP 
audit and add the terms of payment to Bylaw 211-2019 as required by the MGA. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Mayor and Council give three readings to Bylaw No. 239-2023 being a bylaw to amend Bylaw 
No. 211-2019 to include repayment terms in the bylaw. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Bylaw 211-2019 Borrowing Bylaw New Beginnings Servicing. 
2) Bylaw 239-2023 a bylaw to amend Bylaw 211-2019 to include repayment terms. 

 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    









 
BYLAW 239/2023 

Amendment to Bylaw 211-2019 to include Repayment Terms 
 

A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF BENTLEY BEING ENACTED TO AMEND BYLAW 
211-2019 TO INCLUDE REPAYMENT TERMS FOR THE SHORT-TERM 
BORROWING FOR THE CAPITAL EXPENDITURE IN THE AMOUNT OF $512,000, 
FOR THE PURPOSES OF FINANCING THE COMPLETION OF SERVICING OF 
SUBDIVISION PLAN 152-1374 

 

WHEREAS Bylaw 211-2019 was approved on the 28th day of May, 2019 for the purpose of 
authorizing the borrowing of $512,000 to complete servicing of lots contained within Town of 
Bentley Subdivision Plan 152-1374; AND 

WHEREAS clause 3 of Bylaw 211-2019 states: “The Town of Bentley shall repay the 
indebtedness according to the repayment structure, terms and interest rate, set from time to time, 
by the authorized financial institution, with an interest rate not to exceed 4 per cent; AND 

WHEREAS Bylaw 211-2019 does not contain provision respecting the term of borrowing or the 
terms of repayment of the borrowing as required by section 251 (2)(b) of the Municipal 
Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, Chapter M-26; 

NOW THERFORE the Council of the Town of Bentley duly assembled, hereby amends Bylaw 
211-2019 by replacing clause 3 of Bylaw 211-2019 with the following clause: 

“3. Term and Terms of Repayment Loan Facility #9593831-07 with Servus Credit Union Ltd 

 Purpose: To assist with the cost of servicing lots in residential subdivision 

Interest Rate: An annual rate of interest of 3.49%, fixed calculated daily and payable 
monthly in arrears. 

Repayment Terms: Repayable with monthly blended installments of $9,320 
commending one month after the Interest Adjustment Date (IAD) based on a fixed 
interest rate of 3.49% per annum, applied first to interest and secondly to principle; 
originally amortized over a 5-year period with a term expiring sixty (60) months after the 
Interest Adjustment Date. An interest adjustment on the principal amount advanced will 
be calculated from the date of initial advance and will be due and payable on the 1st day of 
the month following the initial advance (IAD). 

Prepayment Privileges: Minimum ($100.00) to a maximum of 20% of the original 
principle per year 

(Payments began October 1, 2019, and will continue until September 1, 2024) 

 



 
6. This Bylaw hereby amends Bylaw 211-2019, a Bylaw to authorize the borrowing of $512,000 
     to complete the servicing of lots contained within the Town of Bentley Subdivision Plan 152- 
     1374. 
 

  Read a First Time in Council this _____ day of _______________, 2023. 

 

  Read a Second Time in Council this _____ day of _______________, 2023. 

 

  Read a Third Time in Council this _____ day of _______________, 2023. 

 

 

TOWN OF BENTLEY 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
MAYOR 

 
 
 

____________________________________ 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 



 

 
 

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
                                                     January 26, 2023  

  
HAMLET OF MIRROR TRAIL  
The County Manager was authorized to proceed with the community trail development in the Hamlet 
of Mirror as proposed by the Mirror Community Network following consultation with adjacent 
landowners. 
 
PURCHASE OF PUBLIC LANDS ADJACENT TO LACOMBE LAKE 
The County Manager was authorized to proceed with the purchase of the Pt. SE-10-40-27-W4 for the 
upset limit of $10,000.00 per acre and to enter into an agreement with Public Lands according to 
Section 21(1) of the Public Lands Act.  
 
2022 ENVIRONMENTAL ACTION PLAN UPDATE  
An update on the 2022 Lacombe County Environmental Action Plan was received for information. 
 
2023 ENVIRONMENTAL ACTION PLAN  
The five Environmental Management Plan Priority Areas for the Lacombe County Environmental Action 
Plan (EAP) are Energy Efficiency, Waste Creation and Disposal, Land Use in the Built and Natural 
Environment, Water Quality and Security, and Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation. A detailed 
overview of the projects proposed for the 2023 EAP was approved as presented.  
 
AGRICULTURE SERVICE BOARD MEETING – RECOMMENDATIONS 
Council approved the following recommendations from the January 10, 2023 Lacombe County 
Agriculture Service Board: 

 
• That the Agricultural Service Board meetings be scheduled for March 15 and October 18, 

2023. 
• That the Confined Feeding Operation Stocking Threshold Report be received for information 
• That the 2023 Provincial Agricultural Service Board Resolutions be received for information 
• That the proposed amendments to the Provincial and Regional ASB Conference Rules of 

Procedure be received for information 
• That the information items, Weed Control on Abandoned Well Sites, ASB Town Hall Meeting, 

and 2023 Extension Dates, be received for information 
        

 
BYLAW NO. 1385/23 RATES AND FEES 2023        
Bylaw No. 1385/23, a bylaw of Lacombe County to authorize the establishment of fees for various 
services, supplies, information, applications and appeals provided to the public was read a first, 
second and third time and so passed by Council.  
 
GULL LAKE WATERSHED SOCIETY  
A presentation by the Gull Lake Watershed Society was received for information. The County 
Manager was directed to prepare a report and recommendation for Council’s deliberation at a future 
Council meeting regarding the Society’s request for County support in requesting Alberta Forestry, 
Parks and Tourism’s timely consideration of the Society’s filtration system proposal for Gull Lake.   
 
 
 
 



                                                                                      
 
 
  
 

 RR 3, Lacombe, AB T4L 2N3 (Tel) 403.782.6601 (Fax) 403.782.3820 www.lacombecounty.com 
 

     
LACOMBE HISTORICAL SOCIETY 
A presentation by the Lacombe and District Historical Society was received for information. Council 
directed the County Manager to collaborate with the LDHS regarding entering into a partnership for 
hosting an Agricultural Tour in 2024. 
 
ANNUAL AUDIT PLANNING 
Council received for information BDO Canada LLP’s plan for the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of Lacombe County for the period ended December 31, 2022. 
 

 AGRICULTURAL TOUR PARTNERSHIP PROPOSAL 
A proposal from the Lacombe and District Historical Society (LDHS) that Lacombe County partner in 
an Ag Tour in 2023 was received for information. The County Manager was directed to collaborate 
with the LDHS regarding entering into a partnership for hosting an Agricultural Tour in 2024.  

 
 ASPELUND INDUSTRAIL PARK SERVING 

The County Manager was authorized to enter into discussions with the Town of Blackfalds regarding 
additional wastewater capacity for the Aspelund Industrial Park. 

 
 The County Manager was further authorized to enter into discussions with Stantec Engineering 
 regarding the preparation of a technical memo for additional servicing for the Aspelund Industrial 
 Park.  

 
Next Regular Council Meeting is 

Thursday, February 9, 2023 - 9:00 a.m. 
 

Next Committee of the Whole Meeting is 
February 7, 2023 – 9:00 a.m. 

                                                    
Lacombe County Administration Building 

 
**For more details from Lacombe County Council meetings, please refer to the 

meeting minutes. All meeting minutes are posted on the website 
(www.lacombecounty.com) after approval.  

http://www.lacombecounty.com/


      
  

Public Notice 
Community Engagement 

Medicine Lodge Ski Hill Masterplan and Asset utilization study  
 

 
 

The Town of Bentley / Central Alberta Economic Partnership in conjunction with Planvision 
Consulting Ltd and supported by the Medicine Lodge Ski Club are inviting you to attend an 
evening engagement session on Wednesday February 22, 2023, 7:30pm to 9:30pm at the 
Bentley Community Hall located at 4821 50th Street in Bentley AB. 
 
As many of you know the Medicine Lodge Ski Hill and club have been a part of the community 
for over 70 years and we would like to keep it that way. We are undertaking an analysis of 
existing infrastructure and at this time we would like to get your feedback on how the hill can 
continue to support recreational skiing/snowboarding and potentially find other ways to serve 
the region and community. We want the Medicine Lodge Ski Hill to continue to be an important 
part of the community now and into the future, so please come to the meeting to share your 
thoughts, ideas and feedback regarding the hill.  
 
We would love to see you in person on the 22nd of February but, if you cannot attend, you also 
have the option of completing an online survey form. We also encourage you to do both, 
attend the session and complete the survey.   
 
Please also Share the survey with your friends and family we want to hear from everyone.  It 
will be available at www.yourviews.ca/medicinelodge between February 20 and 28. 
 
If you have any questions about the project, please contact Joe Pavelka at planvison@shaw.ca 
and if you have any questions about the survey or open house please contact Jon Hartenberger 
at admin@hargroup.ca 

Funding Partner 

 

http://www.yourviews.ca/medicinelodge
mailto:planvison@shaw.ca
mailto:admin@hargroup.ca

	Agenda - February 14,  2023 ,Regular Council Meeting.pdf
	February 14,  2023 Regular Meeting of Council - Minutes of the January 24, 2023 
	Cheque Listing 20230034 to 20230096
	Council Remuneration Listing January
	New Business February 14, 2023 - Grain Elevator Fire and Recovery of Costs for Firefighting
	Attachment #1 - Bylaw 128-2008 Bylaw to establish the operation of a volunteer fire department
	Attachment #2 - Policy 50-2014 Bentley District Fire Department - Fire Protection and Emergency Response
	New Business February 14, 2023 - MAP Audiit Bylaw 238-2023 Bylaw to designate Assessor as a Designated Officer
	Attachment #1 - Bylaw 84-04 - Bylaw to Establsih the Positon of Assessor
	Attachment #2 - BYLAW 238-2023 - Designated Officer Bylaw (Muncipal Assessor)
	New Business February 14, 2023 - MAP Audiit Bylaw 239-2023 -  Amendment to Bylaw 211-2019 to include repayment terms
	Attachment #1 - Bylaw 211-2019 Borrwoing Bylaw - Servicing Cost New Subdivision
	Attachment #2 - BYLAW 239-2023 - Amendment to Bylaw 211-2019 to include repayment terms as per MAP audit
	Correspondance Lacombe County Council Highlights Jan 26, 2023
	Correspondance - February 22 2023 Community Engagement Release Medicine Lodge Ski Hill Masterplan



